
MARICOPA ASSOCIATION OF GOVERNMENTS 
REGIONAL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE COUNCIL 

MEETING MINUTES – NOVEMBER 3, 2010 
 

MEMBERS ATTENDING 
Celeste Adams, Save the Family 
Christina Avila, City of Avondale 
*Robert Bates, Phoenix Police Dept. 
John Belatti, City of Chandler 
*Kathy Berzins, City of Tempe 
Karen Ziegler for John A. Blackburn, Jr., 
AZ Criminal Justice Commission 
Allie Bones, Arizona Coalition Against 
Domestic Violence 
Town Manager Rick Buss, Town of Gila 
Bend 
Chris Christy, Salt River Pima-Maricopa 
Indian Community 
*JoAnn Del-Colle, Phoenix Family 
Advocacy Center 
Councilmember Roy Delgado, City of El 
Mirage 
*President Diane Enos, Salt River Pima-
Maricopa Indian Community  
Will Gonzalez, City of Phoenix 
Prosecutor’s Office 
Laura Guild, Arizona Dept. of Economic 
Security 
*Dan Hughes, City of Surprise  
Cmdr. Kim Humphrey, City of Phoenix 
Police Dept., Chair  
Lynette Jelinek, Glendale Fire Dept.  
*Mary Lynn Kasunic, Area Agency on 
Aging 
*Patricia Klahr, Chrysalis Shelter Inc.  
Councilmember Suzanne Klapp, City of 
Scottsdale 
*Councilmember Sheri Lauritano, City of 
Goodyear 
*Councilmember Phil Lieberman, City of 
Glendale  
*Jodi Beckley Liggett, Arizona Foundation 
for Women  

 
Barbara Marshall, Maricopa County 
Attorney’s Office, Vice Chair 
Jeremy Arp for Governor’s Office for 
Children, Youth, and Families 
Dottie O’Connell, Chicanos Por la Causa 
Connie Phillips, Sojourner Center 
Lynn Potts for John Pombier, City of Mesa 
* Kerry Ramella, City of Phoenix Fire 
Dept. 
*Sarah Youngblood, Community Legal 
Services 
 
OTHERS PRESENT 
Brad Astrowsky, Maricopa County 
Attorney’s Office 
Cheryl Brunton, City of Phoenix 
Sarah Buel, ASU Diane Halle Center for 
Family Justice  
Rita Coronado, Peoria Police Department 
Kelly Gremmel, City of Phoenix 
Mary Alice McKone, Elim House 
Dawn Meadows, UMOM 
Milon Pitts, Homeward Bound 
Samantha Rivera, City of Mesa 
Lori Underhill, Phoenix School of law 
Frances Villarreal, City of Scottsdale 
 
Nick Lanza, MAG 
Amy St. Peter, MAG 
Renae Tenney, MAG 
 
+ Those attending by video/audio 
conference  
* Those not present or represented by 
proxy 

 
 

1. Call to Order 
Chair Kim Humphrey, Phoenix Police Department, called the meeting to order at 1:46 
p.m. Introductions ensued.  



 
2. Call to the Audience 

An opportunity was provided for members of the audience to address the Council on non-
agenda items that fall under the jurisdiction of MAG, or agenda items for discussion but 
not for action.  No comments were made. 
 

3. Approval of the July 15, 2010, Meeting Minutes  
Chair Humphrey called for approval of the July 15, 2010, MAG Regional Domestic 
Violence Council meeting minutes.  Councilmember Roy Delgado, City of El Mirage, 
motioned to approve the minutes.  Will Gonzalez, City of Phoenix Prosecutor’s Office, 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.   
 

4. Committee Officer Appointments 
Chair Humphrey advised per the new MAG policy on officer appointments, MAG 
Committee officers may serve one-year terms.  At the end of the first year, officers may 
serve a second one-year term with consent of the Committee and appointment by the 
MAG Executive Committee.  Renae Tenney, MAG, noted Commander Humphrey and 
Vice Chair Barbara Marshall have expressed their interest in serving a second one-year 
term in their current capacities. Ms. Tenney stated the opportunity was provided for 
others to submit letters of intent to serve as committee officers but no letters were 
received. Chair Humphrey agreed that he and Vice Chair Marshall welcome the 
opportunity to continue serving as Chair and Vice Chair of the Regional Domestic 
Violence Council with the Committee’s consent. 
 
Lynn Potts, City of Mesa, motioned to recommend approval of the re-appointments of 
Commander Humphrey and Barbara Marshall to the MAG Executive Committee. 
Councilmember Delgado seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

5. Domestic Violence Press Conference Update 
Chair Humphrey invited Renae Tenney, MAG, to provide an update on the Domestic 
Violence Press Conference.  He noted the event was interesting and provided a different 
experience than previous press conferences. He commented it captured the media’s 
interest and brought in a significant audience.   
 
Ms. Tenney advised more than 50 community partners gathered at Chrysalis Shelter on 
October 7, 2010, for the press conference.  Audience members listened to audio recording 
of an actual 911 domestic violence call to kick off the event.  The Honorable Thomas 
Schoaf, Chair of the MAG Regional Council and Mayor of Litchfield Park, provided 
opening remarks. Protocol Evaluation Project partners participated by addressing the 
different roles and responsibilities presented through the arrest and prosecution process.  
Commander Humphrey addressed responding to domestic violence calls; Vice Chair 
Barbara Marshall addressed prosecution; and Kristin Scharlau, City of Tempe, addressed 
the role of crisis interventionists.  Ms. Tenney said the Committee was honored to have a 
survivor who had gone through the process and worked with Chrysalis Shelter share her 
story during the conference.  The event helped highlight the goals of the Protocol 
Evaluation Project and how the project will make a difference in the lives of survivors.   
 



Ms. Tenney acknowledged Patricia Klahr, Director of Chrysalis, and the Chrysalis staff, 
for their assistance in coordinating the event.  The press conference was covered by 
KFYI Radio, East Valley Living, Univision, and TeleMundo.  Ms. Tenney noted media 
stayed for the entire press conference providing extensive coverage.  During October, a 
calendar of Domestic Violence Awareness Month events was made available on the 
MAG website at www.azmag.gov. A video recording of the press conference will be 
added to the MAG website in the near future.  
 
Amy St. Peter, MAG, thanked Detective Linda Karel, City of Avondale Police 
Department, for also participating in the conference and the Governor’s Office for their 
support of the Protocol Evaluation Project. Dottie O’Connell, Chicanos por la Causa, 
commented the press conference was impressive and provided a clear statement.  Ms. 
Tenney added acknowledgement of Bruce and Carolyn McBurney for their participation 
as the couple in the domestic violence mock crime scene.  She acknowledged and 
thanked everyone who participated in and attended the event. 
 

6. Community Partner Updates 
Governor’s Commission to Prevent Violence Against Women. 
Chair Humphrey introduced Jeremy Arp, Governor’s Office for Children, Youth and 
Families, to provide an update.  Mr. Arp advised the Commission to Prevent Violence 
Against Women held their last meeting for 2010 in October. Extension of the 
Commission through the end of 2011 is under consideration.  The annual report is 
expected to be released in January. The report will provide a summary of statewide 
activities on sexual assault and domestic violence prevention including activities of the 
Commission work groups. The work of the Domestic Violence Fatality Review Team 
and the Sexual Assault Forensic Exam work groups will be included.  These work groups 
are staffed by the Division for Women.   
 
Within the division, there has been a change of staff with the departure of Maria-Elena 
Ochoa, former Director.  Ms. Ochoa accepted a position with the Superstition Mountain 
Mental Health Center.  Mr. Arp wished Ms. Ochoa well in her new endeavors. 
 
Mr. Arp reported the Governor’s Office is considering current STOP Grant contract 
renewals.  He noted funds still remain in the courts and law enforcement components.  
Mr. Arp apologized for not bringing the totals of available funding to the meeting.  Safe 
Haven grants, which fund the supervised visitation and safe exchange program in Casa 
Grande, has been extended through the end of 2012.  The Rural grant, which funds the 
Southern Arizona Battered Immigrant Women project, recently received $700,000 in 
renewed funding from the Department of Justice to carry out activities through 2011 and 
2012.  Chair Humphrey thanked Mr. Arp for the update.  There were no questions from 
the Committee. 
 
Arizona Coalition Against Domestic Violence 
Chair Humphrey introduced Allie Bones, Arizona Coalition Against Domestic Violence, 
to provide an update.  Ms. Bones advised the Coalition does not expect to pursue a 
legislative agenda this year. The Legislative Advisory Committee will meet next week to 
further discuss legislative strategies.  The Coalition anticipates having to defend not only 
budgetary issues but also policy initiatives.  The Coalition has been successful in passing 



12 policy initiatives within the past two years.  Ms. Bones advised the Coalition is also 
working with others on evaluating revisions to the child custody statute.  While the 
Coalition is not taking the lead, they are heavily involved with these efforts.    
 
Connie Phillips, Sojourner Center, asked for further information on specific initiatives at 
risk.  Ms. Bones replied there are no specific risks at this time. She noted any discussion 
regarding the domestic violence law being too broad or having gone too far raises 
concern.  Initiatives that may be targeted include mutual orders of protection, dating 
relationships, and strangulation/suffocation.  The Coalition wishes to ensure their efforts 
and success over the past two years are not undone. 
 
Ms. Bones announced the Coalition’s newsletter was released on Friday.  Anyone 
interested in receiving the newsletter should contact Ms. Bones. The Coalition’s open 
house is scheduled for November 18, 2010 from 3:00-5:00 p.m.  The 2011 training 
calendar will be released by the end of the year.  Ms. Bones advised The Sharing 
Experience and Domestic Violence 101 have been completely revamped. Ms. Bones 
advised the Coalition will hold major conferences every other year. Mini-summits are 
being planned for the off years. 
 
Ms. Bones discussed a project the Coalition is working on in partnership with the 
O’Connor House, Avon Program for Women and Justice.  A new Speak Out Against 
Domestic Violence poster has been created through collaboration among several partners.  
The poster was unveiled at the Arizona Foundation for Women luncheon.  The first 3,000 
posters are available for free and can be ordered through www.oconnordvposter.com.  
Help in displaying the poster in businesses, schools, or anywhere they will be seen is 
encouraged. 
 
Ms. Bones said the Coalition, as well as the Arizona Sexual Assault Network, has been 
working with the State Agency Coordinating Team to plan community conversations in 
all regions across the state.  Eight community conversations have been held to date.  
Planning for the ninth community conversation in the Maricopa region is now underway. 
This conversation will take into consideration the various partnerships that already exist 
and expand on the work already done by the MAG Regional Domestic Violence Council.  
The Maricopa Community Conversation is planned for December 7, 2010. The location 
has yet to be determined.  Email notifications will be distributed once all details are 
confirmed.  
 
Chair Humphrey thanked community partners for their updates.  He noted the Committee 
relies on the Coalition to keep the group informed and to rally around any issues that 
arise.  He noted the importance of not losing ground.  Ms. Bones added a community 
effort is needed and said this will require a lot of work and a lot of advocacy.  
 

7. Regional Plan to End Domestic Violence 
Chair Humphrey introduced Renae Tenney, MAG, to present a progress report on the 
strategies laid out in the Regional Plan to End Domestic Violence.  Ms. Tenney said the 
Committee decided to refocus their efforts after spending 10 years working from the 
1999 Regional Domestic Violence Plan. The Committee decided to develop a new 
regional plan.  The new plan would evaluate the Council’s work from the previous ten 



years, the changing landscape of domestic violence, and take into account the impact the 
changing economy would have on the Committee’s work.   
 
Ms. Tenney expressed gratitude to St. Luke’s Health Initiatives for funding the year-long 
process used to develop the new regional plan.  The plan consists of 15 strategies within 
the categories of Funding; Training and Education; Coordination and Collaboration; and 
Services.  Ms. Tenney referred to the progress report handout as she provided a brief 
overview. 
  
Funding: 

 The Arizona Coalition Against Domestic Violence and the Arizona Foundation 
for Women are researching a “Change a Life” campaign. This type of fundraiser 
would allow for people to make donations at check-out when shopping at 
designated store locations. 

 
 The Coalition is also working with the Arizona Diamondbacks to hold an annual 

domestic violence awareness night. Plans are underway to turn the event into a 
main fundraiser replacing the Domestic Violence Walk.  
 

Training and Education: 
 The Wal-Mart Poster campaign and the new Speak Out Against Domestic 

Violence campaign are underway.  While there are similarities, the Wal-Mart 
campaign is specific to placing posters in restrooms in Wal-Mart’s throughout the 
state.  The Speak Out poster is available to any organization. 

 
 The Purple Ribbon Council is moving forward with many outreach and awareness 

events including Pretty in Purple activities and Go Purple Day.   
 

 Work is underway for the development of computer-based trainings for judges 
and court staff.  Three trainings have been developed to date including Domestic 
Violence 101 for Judges; Domestic Violence 101 for Court Staff; and Top 10 
Questions About Domestic Violence.  Ms. Tenney noted an additional training 
session was added to judicial and family law conferences. 

  
 The Phoenix Police Department has developed new protocols for domestic 

violence. Patrol officers are being trained to use a new screening tool.    
 

 The Phoenix Family Advocacy Center and A New Leaf are working together to 
provide training for addressing domestic violence in the refugee community.  
JoAnne Del-Colle, Director of the Phoenix Family Advocacy Center, now 
oversees the homeless area as well.  She is working to focus more efforts on 
addressing domestic violence within the homeless population.     

 
 The Maricopa Executive Director’s meetings have increased from quarterly to 

monthly meetings. These meetings provide an opportunity for shelter directors 
and staff to discuss trends and share promising practices.   
 
 



 The Arizona Coalition Against Domestic Violence, DES, and State Agency 
Coordinating Team are organizing a community conversation in Maricopa 
County. This conversation will reach out to shelters, providers, and first 
responders to look at the best way to utilize funding for domestic violence 
services.  

 
 The Coalition’s Legal Subcommittee has developed a Legal Resource List 

providing contact numbers and information for accessing legal assistance and 
legal representation. The list is available on the Coalition’s website at 
www.azcadv.org .  

 
 Connecting with critical resources continues to be addressed by the MAG 

Regional Domestic Violence Council and the Governor’s Commission to Prevent 
Violence Against Women.   

 
Services: 

 The Arizona Coalition Against Domestic Violence hired an outside evaluation 
team to conduct an internal assessment of the organizations’ cultural competency.  
The evaluators are assisting with a review of the Coalition’s materials. Once 
completed, the Coalition will be sharing lessons learned with domestic violence 
organizations throughout the state.  The Coalition is also forming a multi-cultural 
advisory committee with plans to meet before the end of the year. 

 
 No updates were available for strategies number 12 and 13.  

 
 The Domestic Violence and Homeless Transportation Study was completed and is 

under review.  The study will be released in the near future. 
 
Ms. Tenney concluded her overview and asked for questions or input from the 
Committee. Ms. Phillips requested clarification about the domestic violence awareness 
night with the Diamondbacks.  Ms. Bones advised the Diamondbacks are supportive of 
expanding the domestic violence awareness night to include a pre-game event on the 
field.  The pre-game recognition would provide an opportunity to engage more people.  
Ms. Bones noted this effort would require help from a group of people interested in 
turning the concept into reality.  Help is needed for researching options for participant 
items, engaging the business community, and securing sponsorships.  Ms. Phillips 
expressed interest in having women from Sojourner’s transitional program participate in 
these efforts.  She commented they were disappointed when they could no longer 
participate in the domestic violence walk. They found it meaningful to walk and support 
advocacy efforts.    
 
Chair Humphrey stressed the importance of acknowledging the long list of activities and 
actions that are moving the plan forward.  He said it is a tremendous testament to all the 
dedication and work accomplished over the years.  
  

8. Domestic Violence Protocol Evaluation Project 
Chair Humphrey invited Ms. Tenney to provide a progress report on the implementation 
of the Domestic Violence Protocol Evaluation Project.  Ms. Tenney discussed the status 



of the evaluation services team, noting six proposals were received through the Request 
for Proposal process.  A multi-disciplinary review panel of five community partners 
evaluated the proposals and interviewed the top three candidates. A recommendation has 
been made and is moving through the MAG approval process.  Approval of the 
evaluation services team is expected by November 15, 2010. 
 
Fifty participants attended a very successful Protocol Evaluation Project (PEP) 
Community Meeting held October 6, 2010.  Ms. Tenney said the event provided a great 
opportunity for discussion and networking. Attendees participated in intra-occupational 
paired interviews, small group discussions, and heard from keynote speaker Sarah Buel.  
The community meeting helped identify areas of most potential and highlighted the 
importance of coordination.  Ms. Tenney advised the project was highlighted during the 
MAG Domestic Violence Press conference.  
 
Planning for the Promising Practices Roundtable is underway. The event will draw on 
information obtained through the community meeting to research local and national 
promising practices.  The event is scheduled for December 1, 2010 at the Wyndham 
Hotel. The event will include a local promising practices panel, and breakout sessions 
based on topic areas identified through key informant interviews.  These topics include 
Training; Communication/Collaboration; Attitudes; and Survivors’ Perspectives.  
 
Staff is in the process of identifying speakers for the event including a national victim 
advocate.  Ms. Bones asked for clarification on the definition of a national victim 
advocate.  Ms. St. Peter advised staff is searching for an individual or agency from across 
the country that is doing the best work to move the issue forward.  She requested speaker 
recommendations from the Committee and input on best practices that should be 
highlighted at the event.   
  
Ms. Tenney discussed the PEP protocol inventory. She acknowledged Nick Lanza, MAG 
intern, for compiling the first draft.  Ms. Tenney noted 25 municipalities provided 
information on their written protocols.  The Law Enforcement Misdemeanor Domestic 
Violence Arrest Protocols Inventory provides an aggregate look at different sections of 
protocols including:  Initial Response; Initial Police Contact; On-Scene Investigation; 
Arrest Decision; Arrest Not Authorized/Not Made; On-scene Assistance to Victims; and 
Reports and Data Collection.  Ms. Tenney said the inventory provides a visual 
representation of what protocols are being self-reported and used throughout the region.  
Those listed with an asterisk indicate protocols also found in the Maricopa County 
Domestic Violence Protocol Manual. The summary chart indicates the level of county 
protocol implementation reported by municipalities.   
 
Ms. Tenney noted prosecution protocols are not included in the draft inventory.  Of the 
20 municipal courts, nine reported cases handled on a case-by-case basis with no written 
protocols; seven reported use of the Maricopa County DV Protocol Manual; two reported 
having an IGA or referral process to other courts; and two provided written policies for 
prosecution.  Ms. Tenney advised a supplement of the prosecution information will be 
added to the draft. 
 



Vice Chair Marshall asked for clarification on the summary chart at the end of the 
inventory. She requested an explanation of the purpose of the chart and what information 
it was designed to show.  Specifically, she mentioned the charts should indicate what 
percentage of the population is covered by which protocols. This will indicate the scale of 
people affected by the varying protocols used throughout the region.  
 
Ms. St. Peter clarified the information laid out in the protocol inventory. She noted the 
bar chart extends over several pages.  For example, she said, 15 of the municipalities 
indicated they are using the protocol that appears in Maricopa County Protocols for 
officers being briefed by a dispatcher before arriving on scene. She advised the higher 
number of cities and towns implementing the protocol, the higher the bar chart would be 
on each page.  Short bars may be an indication cities are not using the Maricopa County 
protocols or that only a few are doing so.  The results may lead to further questioning on 
whether or not the protocol is working, and if so, why is it not being followed.  Chair 
Humphrey said the last chart is unclear and recommended it be revised.  Ms. St. Peter 
asked for further input on areas where protocols should be combined or reflected in a 
different manner. She expressed gratitude for all the work that has gone in preparing the 
inventory acknowledging more work is still needed.  
 
Laura Guild, Arizona Department of Economic Security, asked how the inventory data 
was obtained.  Ms. St. Peter advised staff reviewed protocols provided by cities and 
towns and compared those to the Maricopa County protocols.  She noted some cities and 
towns have protocols in place that are not in the Maricopa County protocols.  Ms. Guild 
noted the need to have more explanation available to better understand what the 
inventory is showing. Chair Humphrey advised the inventory is an analysis of written 
protocols provided by the cities, towns, and county. The information was not gathered by 
administering a survey.  The inventory results will be used by the Committee to make 
recommendations for the PEP project.  Ms. St. Peter noted a request was made during an 
earlier PEP meeting for staff to conduct an inventory of who was implementing what 
protocol and to what extent.  The data obtained is self-reported by cities and towns. There 
is no monitoring of the way the protocols are being implemented.  
  
Councilmember Delgado noted the inventory may be helpful to police departments. He 
asked if the report will be distributed to the police departments.  Chair Humphrey advised 
the goal is to distribute best practices to all PEP partners and anyone interested in 
obtaining the information.  Ms. St. Peter noted feedback received on the project and the 
protocol inventory will be used to help identify where technical or training assistance 
may be needed to help implement protocols. 
 
Ms. Phillips said the inventory is discouraging as it appears to show many protocols are 
not being implemented.  Chair Humphrey noted the inventory indicates that not all 
agencies are following the same protocols.  However, he said this bodes well for the 
project as the protocols have not been reviewed for quite some time.  He added Maricopa 
County protocols focus on felonies while this project transitions to misdemeanor crimes.  
He noted these protocols were new ground for many law enforcement agencies and in 
some situations, agencies have developed their own protocols while others have not. 
 



Vice Chair Barbara Marshall asked if the inventory included protocols directed at 
misdemeanors, felonies, or both. She noted the need to take into account the density and 
size of the municipalities when comparing the implementation of protocols. Ms. Tenney 
commented the request for written protocols from police departments and prosecutor 
offices were specific to misdemeanors.  
 
Ms. Phillips expressed her concern over the disconnect between law enforcement and 
shelters.  She requested there be an opportunity during the Promising Practices 
Roundtable to discuss how police and shelters can work closer together to support one 
another.  Ms. St. Peter asked if the ideal outcome would be for all agencies to implement 
all of the Maricopa County protocols for misdemeanors.  .  Councilmember Delgado 
asked if the inventory can be used as a tool by law enforcement agencies. He commented 
the inventory might be helpful in formulating their teams and enforcing best practices. 
 
Mr. Gonzalez questioned what makes a protocol a best practice.  He stated a best practice 
is determined by what is supported by research.  The research should show which 
protocols work and which do not.  He said his understanding of the project is to 
determine what every agency is doing, evaluate the data, and then determine what is 
working well.  He noted the data is not disappointing at this point, because we are just in 
the process of gathering information.  
 
Chair Humphrey said there is significant evidence available on successful protocols.  He 
commented on the need to define success.  He added success may be defined through 
rates of prosecution, recidivism, or conviction rates, which require a significant amount 
of improvement.  He said there is a need to define what is working well and why it works 
well.  He noted the need for a holistic approach.  Ms. Phillips referenced research from 
Bill Hart, Arizona State University, questioning how to approach domestic violence. The 
research addresses whether or not to continue looking to law enforcement to solve the 
issue, or if a holistic approach is needed like the focus of the Family Justice Centers. 
 
Councilmember Delgado said police departments are trying to develop a manual to 
handle situations in the best possible manner.  Considering that they are the first to make 
contact with a victim, it is important that everything be done correctly to ensure a smooth 
process moving forward.    
 
Sarah Buel, ASU Diane Halle Center for Family Justice, said one of her hopes is to 
identify challenges faced by police departments. For example, she noted some 
departments may not have cameras available to use at crime scenes due to lack of 
funding. Once challenges are identified, the Center can provide assistance.  Ms. St. Peter 
said information from these meetings along with feedback from the Promising Practices 
Roundtable will help identify areas of greatest potential.  She suggested once these areas 
are defined, staff can review and compare the outcomes.  Departments that have not 
implemented the protocols can then be surveyed to determine what is impeding them. 
This would allow the project to respond to key concerns and barriers faced by 
departments.  She asked for input from the Committee 
 
Ms. Bones noted surveys are an easy, cost effective, and quick way to get information.  
She suggested having representatives from law enforcement agencies from across the 



region involved in the discussions early in the process.  She noted this would lead to 
more ownership and result in better implementation of protocols later in the process.  Ms. 
St. Peter added an evaluation team will be joining the project and participating at the 
roundtable event. 
 
Ms. Tenney referred to Ms. Buel’s presentation at the PEP Community Meeting and the 
conversations that followed about the formation of task force groups.  Ms. Tenney said 
there has been interest throughout the community to bring people together in a less 
formal setting and with a topic-driven focus.  She noted a stakeholders group focused on 
topics developed from the PEP may be an appropriate fit.  Ms. Tenney asked for 
Committee members input on the potential role and activities of such a stakeholder 
group.    
 
Ms. St. Peter invited Ms. Buel to address the Committee regarding this recommendation.  
Ms. Buel said in various community discussions people have asked how they may 
participate in monthly meetings to discuss issues such as prosecution and law 
enforcement.  She said officers have also asked how to conduct monthly meetings 
professionals such as shelter liaison committees, community education meetings, lunch 
meetings for prosecutors, or smaller meetings for those people who do not wish to attend 
the larger meetings.  She said national models have shown the most effective groups 
seem to meet monthly and are open to anyone who wants to attend.  Ms. St. Peter asked 
for input on integrating the model described by Ms. Buel with work already undertaken 
by the Committee. She said the intent is not to duplicate the work but to provide greater 
opportunities for involvement. Ms. Buel advised ASU has many law students who wish 
to get involved.  She requested input on how ASU may connect students to help fill in the 
gaps.   
 
Vice Chair Marshall stated her support for providing additional opportunities for 
community partner involvement in the Committee’s work. She suggested invitations 
could be sent out from the ASU Diane Halle Center. Ms. Buel suggested more people 
may attend if the invitation came from MAG.  A joint invitation was recommended.   
 
Ms. Phillips said she is excited about the concept of bringing people together in a more 
focused manner.  She said the idea has always been that the Council is a very dynamic 
group. While the Council should be where people look for information on what is taking 
place in the community it has become a formal process that has lost momentum.  She said 
incorporating this new model into the way the Committee conducts its work would be 
very exciting and help to create new energy.  Ms. Buel said it will take courage to ask 
survivors why they are not calling police, why they don’t feel comfortable coming to 
court, and how to make the process better.  
 
Chair Humphrey advised a motion could be made to explore this opportunity.  He noted 
there is enough interest to pursue it further and include it in the project next year.  Ms. St. 
Peter summarized the Committee’s support for a focus on law enforcement, prosecution, 
and public safety.  Ms. Buel and Ms. Phillips requested shelters be included as well.  Ms. 
Buel added civil legal assistance as another potential topic.  She noted a common 
complaint is the 45 minute wait times when clients call for legal services.  Many people 
do not have that much time to wait on hold and community legal services acknowledge 



they need assistance.  Ms. Buel suggested ASU law students could be trained to help 
provide legal assistance.   
 
Ms. Phillips made a motion to explore the opportunity to form stakeholder groups within 
the Committee’s current PEP project.  Lynnette Jelinek, Glendale Fire Department, 
seconded the motion.  The motion passed.  Ms. Bones suggested discussion at the 
Promising Practices Roundtable on December 1st and the Community Conversation on 
December 7th could provide some ideas on where to start.   
 

9. Request for Future Agenda Items 
Committee members were asked to provide input on topics or issues of interest that the 
MAG Regional Domestic Violence Council would like to have considered for discussion 
at a future meeting.   
   
Councilmember Delgado recalled Maria-Elena Ochoa had previously commented about 
the ADT program to help victims obtain panic button or an alarm system.  He requested 
an update on how the program works. 
 
Ms. Bones requested an update from the Phoenix Police Department regarding 
implementation of their new domestic violence protocol.   
  

10. Comments from the Council 
An opportunity was provided to Committee members to present a brief summary of 
current events.   
   
Ms. Buel advised a seminar will be held on November 19, 2010 from 12:00 – 6:00 p.m. 
at the ASU School of Law regarding domestic violence and prosecution.  Individuals 
speaking at the seminar will argue domestic violence crimes should be decriminalized as 
they create an invasion of privacy.  Ms. Buel will attend the seminar and advised several 
local prosecutors have been invited to respond.   
 
Ms. Bones advised the first domestic violence awareness event was held at the White 
House recently.  She said it was an amazing event.  More information is available at 
www.whitehouse.gov and on the Coalition’s FaceBook page.    
 
Chair Humphrey thanked everyone for attending.  He said it is easy to become 
discouraged. He encouraged everyone to remember the quote “Life is 10 percent what 
happens to you and 90 percent how you respond”.  He said the Committee has an 
opportunity to make a difference in spite of significant obstacles.    
 

11. Adjourn:   
The meeting adjourned at 3:10 p.m. The next MAG Regional Domestic Violence Council 
meeting is scheduled for January 6, 2011 at 1:30 p.m. in the Cholla Room at the MAG 
offices.  


